
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Chief Executive 
 

BOARD MEMBERSHIP 
 
 

Councillor Tony McDermott 
(Chairman) 

Labour 

Councillor Mike Wharton Labour 

Councillor Rob Polhill Labour 

 
 
 

Please contact Lynn Derbyshire on 0151 471 7389 or e-mail 
lynn.derbyshire@halton.gov.uk  for further information. 
The next meeting of the Board is on Thursday, 14 September 2006 
 

Mersey Gateway Executive Board 
 
Thursday, 20 July 2006 3.00 p.m. (or at 
the rise of the Executive Board meeting), 
Marketing Suite, Municipal Building 

Public Document Pack



 
ITEMS TO BE DEALT WITH  

IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Part l 
 
Item No. Page No. 
  
1. TERMS OF REFERENCE  
  

1 - 2 

 To note the attached terms of reference for the Board. 
 

 
 

2. PROGRESS REPORT 
 

3 - 6 

3. LIAISON WITH DEPARTMENT FOR TRANSPORT 
 

7 - 40 

4. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 

 

 

PART II 
 

ITEMS CONTAINING “EXEMPT” INFORMATION FALLING 
WITHIN SCHEDULE 12A OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 

1972 AND THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO 
INFORMATION) ACT 1985 

 
In this case the Board has a discretion to exclude the press and 
public but, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted, it 
is RECOMMENDED that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, having been satisfied that in all the 
circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for 
the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 3 
and 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act. 
 
 

 

5. MATTERS REPORTED TO THE EXECUTIVE  BOARD SUB-
COMMITTEE 

 

41 - 46 

6. STATUTORY PROCEDURES 
 

47 - 50 

7. FINANCE 
 

51 - 52 

 
In accordance with the Health and Safety at Work Act the Council is 
required to notify those attending meetings of the fire evacuation 
procedures. A copy has previously been circulated to Members and 
instructions are located in all rooms within the Civic block. 



  
 
Mersey Gateway Executive Board  
 

Membership 

 

• The Leader of the Council plus two other members of the Executive to be 

selected by the Leader. 

 

Officer Support 
 

• The Chief Executive, Mersey Gateway Project Director, Strategic Director 

Environment, Operational Director Financial Services, Council Solicitor, 

Operational Director Major Projects, Operation Director Highways & 

Transportation 

• Such other officers and external advisors as required 

 

Terms of Reference/Scheme of Delegation 
 

1. To determine the strategic direction for the Mersey Gateway Project  

 

2. To monitor and oversee progress against the project timetable  

 

3. To develop and refine the detail of the project as it progresses. 

 

4. To procure the Mersey Gateway Project securing Best Value terms for the 

Council.  

 

5. To support the officers of the Council in engaging with the other partners, 

stakeholders and the public as the Scheme progresses. 

 

6. To take and authorise such action as is necessary to implement the project 

within the capital and revenue budgets approved by the Council and within the 

available funding derived from external sources. 

 

7. In cases of urgency where it is not practicable to call an urgent meeting of the 

Mersey Gateway Executive Board, the authority of the Mersey Gateway 

Executive Board to take action as set out above is further delegated to the Chief 

Executive (in consultation with the Leader of the Council) subject to the matter 

being reported to the first available meeting of the Mersey Gateway Executive 

Board. 

 

8. To provide regular progress reports to the Council’s Executive Board. 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 1Page 1



Page 2

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
REPORT TO:   Mersey Gateway Executive Board  
 
DATE: 20 July 2006 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Mersey Gateway Project Director 
 
SUBJECT: Progress Report 
 
WARDS: Boroughwide 
 

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 
1.1 This report is the first in a series of progress reports to the Mersey 

Gateway Executive Board (MGEB) as part of the new governance 
arrangements that are now operating to support the delivery of the 
Mersey Gateway project.   

 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION:  That 

 
(1) the MGEB note the progress made and the issues to be 

discussed with officials at the Department for Transport at the 
meeting arranged for 21 July 2006: and 

(2) the more detailed project budget covering an expenditure 
forecast for this current financial year and for 2007/8 be 
approved. 

 

3.0 PROGRESS REPORT 

 
3.1 The Council’s Executive Board approved the formation and delegated 

authority of the MGEB at its meeting on 22 June 2006. The approved 
terms of reference are included in the meeting papers (agenda item 1).   

 
3.2 The new project structure is now being implemented. Substantive 

progress has been made in the following areas. 
 

Core Project Team 
 

3.3 Interviews for the three Project Team roles that have been advertised 
internally are to take place in late July. The aim is to have positions filled 
in early September. Gifford have provided Claire Hall, as Mersey 
Gateway Project Manager, on secondment terms to the Council and 
Claire took up her new position on 3 July 2006.  

 
  
 

Agenda Item 2Page 3



Commission Arrangements for Consultant and Advisors 
 
3.4 The procurement arrangements with specialist consultants and project 

advisors are in the process of being refreshed or procured. Details of 
proposals and the progress made with implementation is due to be 
reported to the Council’s Executive Board Sub-Committee on 20 July 
2006 (copy of report at Part II of the agenda, item 5).  

 
 Liaison with Department for Transport 
 
3.5 The funding conditions stipulated by the Department require scheme 

progress reports to be submitted at quarterly intervals. The first report 
has been forwarded to the Department and is due to be discussed at a 
meeting on 21 July 2006. The progress report is attached at agenda item 
3. A paper addressing the statutory procedures to be followed is included 
in Part II of the agenda, item number 6. 
  

4.0  PROJECT BUDGET  
 
4.1 A strategic budget of £14 million to deliver Mersey Gateway to the 

commencement of construction was included in the arrangements for 
taking the project forward agreed by the Council’s Executive Board on 20 
April 2006. A more detailed breakdown of the budget required to 
progress the scheme over the next two years has now been produced 
and this is to be discussed at item 7. 

 
4.2 The current capital expenditure is being met by prudential borrowing. At 

the commencement of the current financial year £3,729,472 was 
available to fund future development costs .The Board will note that this 
will be sufficient to cover projected expenditure for the current financial 
year but subsequent expenditure will require an additional borrowing 
facility, drawn against the Council’s Strategic Priorities Fund, reduced by 
the amount received from contributions now being sought from third 
parties.   

 

4.3 The Chief Executive has written to the Mersey Gateway supporting 
authorities and to NWDA to suggest an equitable scheme for sharing the 
development cost for Mersey Gateway. The aim is to raise 50 per cent of 
the £14 million projected development cost through third party 
contributions. The proposal has been discussed by Merseyside 
Authorities Chief Finance Officers who advise that the best option for 
securing the financial contribution would be to ‘top slice’ the region’s 
block Local Transport Grant from 2008/9 onwards. Such a proposal will 
now be reported to the Merseyside Leaders meeting in August.    

 
4.4 Cheshire County Council has advised it cannot support the proposal. We 

have not received any response from Warrington Borough Council. 
 

Page 4



4.5 Potential contributions, including possible private sector interests, will 
continue to be investigated towards the aim of raising half of the 
development cost budget.   

 
 
5.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
 
  

Document Place of Inspection Contact Officer 
 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



   
.  

          
REPORT: Major Projects Division,  

Department for Transport 
 
DATE:   7 July 2006 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Mersey Gateway Project Director 
 
SUBJECT: Mersey Gateway 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
 This progress report is the first of a series of reports to the Major 

Projects Division at the Department for Transport (DfT) required to 
support major scheme funding approval.  It is proposed that progress 
reports will be submitted at quarterly intervals and this report covers 
scheme preparation developments since Mersey Gateway received 
Programme Entry funding approval in March 2006.   

 
2.0 KEY DECISIONS REQUIRED 
 

(1) To confirm that the proposed traffic model specification now 
being taken forward has the scope to provide robust 
evidence that should be fully compliant with the 
Department's modelling requirements.   

 
(2) To agree on the most appropriate statutory process that 

should be incorporated in the Mersey Gateway Project Plan 
in order to secure the powers to build, maintain and apply toll 
charges for both the proposed Mersey Gateway and the 
existing Silver Jubilee Bridge.  

  
3.0 GENERAL PROGRESS 
 
3.1 The Secretary of State announced on 29 March 2006 that he had 

granted Programme Entry approval for Mersey Gateway and offered to 
fund the scheme in line with the Authority bid of £86 million grant and 
£123 million in PFI Credits.  The decision places Mersey Gateway in 
the DfT national programme of major schemes.  The decision was 
clarified in a letter from DfT to the Council’s Chief Executive of 29 
March that set out specific terms on which the approval and funding 
offer were based.    

 
3.2 At its meeting on 20 April the Council’s Executive Board accepted the 

funding conditions and gave authority for Mersey Gateway to be 
progressed through the planning and procurement process.  This 

Agenda Item 3Page 7



   
.  

decision was confirmed by the Council Chief Executive in his letter to 
Alison Munro of 3 May 2006.   

 
3.3 The Programme Entry approval and the Council Executive Board’s 

decision to accept the funding conditions, gave officials executive 
authority to mobilise the resources and project organisation required for 
project delivery.  It is envisaged that the revised project structure will be 
fully staffed and operational by September 2006.   

 
3.4 The three-tier project organisation, comprising the Advisory Panel, the 

Mersey Gateway Executive Board and the Project Team will be fully 
functional by the end of July.   

 
3.5 The Advisory Panel meets for the first time on 13 July and its role is to 

steer and scrutinise project development with particular emphasis 
being placed on securing project benefits which are of regional 
significance.  The Panel members include senior officials from 
Government Agencies, local authorities in South Merseyside and 
Cheshire and selected private sector representatives who are identified 
with the case for delivering Mersey Gateway.  The expertise of the 
latter group will add to the public sector skills in place to provide a keen 
appreciation of delivery risks, many of which are influenced by market 
and commercial considerations.    

 
3.6 The executive control of the project would be through the Mersey 

Gateway Executive Board, chaired by the Council Leader and formed 
under the Council’s constitution.  The membership of the Mersey 
Gateway Executive Board will be based on project management best 
practice (PRINCE2) where the roles of the Board members are 
identified and understood.  The Leader and two nominated Councillors 
as principal Board members have been given all the necessary powers 
to act on behalf of the Council unless the Council’s constitution and 
standing orders require specific matters to be referred to Council.  The 
Board will delegate project delivery to the Project Director who will 
raise issues and change management requirements on an exception 
basis.  The inaugural meeting of the Mersey Gateway Executive Board 
will be held on 20 July 2006.  

 
3.7 The Project Team will be dedicated to the delivery of the Mersey 

Gateway and will be formed by a combination of recruitment and 
secondment and headed by myself (Steve Nicholson) as full time 
Project Director.  A core team of Project Manager, Procurement 
Manager and an Integration and Policy Manager, supported by a Public 
Relations Officer and administrators will co-ordinate the input of 
specialist consultants and financial and legal advisors.  The Project 
Director will be responsible directly to the Mersey Gateway Executive 
Board. 

Page 8



   
.  

3.8 Arrangements to fill the Project Team posts are in hand.  Claire Hall 
has been seconded from Gifford to fill the Project Manager role, and 
tenders have been invited from specialist procurement and cost 
management consultants to provide the Procurement Manager, again 
on secondment terms.  The remaining posts are in the process of being 
filled through internal recruitment competitions.   

   
3.9 The Project Team will direct the undertakings of consultants and 

advisors.  The existing arrangements with Gifford, Mott MacDonald, 
KPMG and Herbert Smith, are expected to be maintained with the 
contractual appointments refreshed as required.  As referred to above, 
the Project Team will require further specialist consultant support in the 
area of cost management and in the drafting of PFI procurement 
documentation.  Bids have been invited with a view to commissioning 
this support at the end of July.  

 
4. ESTABLISHING THE PROJECT DELIVERY ORGANISATION 
 
4.1 The revised Mersey Gateway Project Structure is described below. 

Mersey Gateway Project Structure

Mersey Gateway Executive Board

MG  

Advisory 

Panel
Halton Borough

Council

Executive

MG Project Director
DfT Major Projects

Team

Engineering Policy 

Interface Manager MG Project Manager
MG Procurement 

Manager

Project 

Administrator 

PA/Project 

Records

OfficerExternal Advisors and Consultants/Council Support Services

 

 

 

 

Page 9



   
.  

5.0 FINANCE ISSUES 
 
5.1 Development Costs  
 
5.1.1 The estimate of development cost has been revisited and the range 

has been narrowed to between £12m and £16m.  The mid-point of £14 
million has been used to develop an operating budget for the project 
that is estimated to be required to deliver the project up to financial 
close (ie up to a stage where a contract and private finance is in place 
and work can commence).  The profile of the budget over the next six 
years is given in the following table:- 

 
 2006/7 2007/8 2008/9 2009/10 20010/11 2011/1

2 
Total 

Core 

Team
1
 

0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.25 2.75 

Technical
2
 

2.0 1.5 0.9 0.25 0.25 0.10 5.0 

Legal
3
 0.75 1.0 1.0 0.5 0.5 0.25 4.0 

Financial 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.5 0.75 0.25 2.25 

Total 3.5 3.25 2.65 1.75 2.0 0.85 14.0 

  
5.1.2 In the first instance, these costs have been covered by utilising 

prudential borrowing funded by the Borough Council’s Priorities Fund.    
The need for further prudential borrowing would be kept under review 
alongside the development of a preferred procurement strategy and the 
external contributions secured.  Prior to Programme Entry the project 
was supported by significant financial contributions from some 
neighbouring authorities and NWDA.  We are currently negotiating to 
secure further contributions with the aim of raising 50 per cent of the 
£14m development budget through third party contributions.  

 
5.1.3 To support robust financial planning the Council would like 

confirmation of the administration procedure for funding Mersey 
Gateway that will be applied going forward, particularly as the 
Department’s policy towards funding major schemes has gone 
through a series of consultation reviews in recent months.  

 
6.0 PROJECT ISSUES  (to be discussed at the meeting on 21 July) 
 
6.1 Traffic Model Specification and Liaison Procedures 
 

                                                 
1
 Includes for project team office accommodation 
2
 includes £1.2m for new traffic model 
3
 Includes land referencing consultant support for Property Services 

Page 10



   
.  

6.1.1 The Council has agreed Mott MacDonald proposals for the new traffic 
model.  Surveys have now commenced and existing data is being 
collected throughout the study area. The aim is to produce the LMVR 
early next year to be followed by the forecasting work required to 
support a business case review before the summer recess (2007). The 
availability of reliable forecast parameters is critical to programme 
delivery. To ensure the modelling proposals are robust the Council 
seek DfT agreement to the scope and model specification and to put in 
place liaison arrangements to ensure the model outputs satisfy the 
Department’s standards.  

 
6.1.2 The model scoping report is attached at Appendix 1 and the points to 

consider in setting up appropriate liaison arrangements with the DfT 
specialists is at Appendix 2.    

 
6.2 Project Initiation Document 
 
6.2.1 A draft PID has been forwarded to Philip Mills and we have received 

several comments aimed at improving the robustness of the delivery 
framework. An amended PID will be forwarded before the meeting on 
21 July and the comments received will be discussed at that meeting. 

 
6.3 Statutory Process (covered by legal in confidence for FOI 

purposes) 
 
6.3.1 The Council has taken further legal advice on the statutory procedures 

available to secure tolling powers for Mersey Gateway and the existing 
Silver Jubilee Bridge. The advice prompts a review of earlier 
considerations given to this matter which involved consultations with 
the Department. A report explaining the issues is attached at Agenda 
item 6 (see Part II). 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



Mersey Gateway: Scope of Services  Mott MacDonald 

Mersey Gateway: Scope 
of Services 

June 2006 

Mott MacDonald 

Spring Bank House 

33 Stamford Street 

Altrincham 

Cheshire

WA14 1ES 

Tel : +44(0)161 926 4000 

Fax : +44(0)161 926 4100 

225637/2/07/07/06/ 
P:\Manchester\Northwest\Projects (Odd)\225637 Mersey Gateway\1.0  Project Control\1.3 Proposal - Bid\Scope_budget_proposal_Rev_G.doc/ MBW 

Page 13



Mersey Gateway: Scope 
of Services 

Issue and Revision Record  

Rev Date Originator Checker Approver Description 

A Feb 2006 Philip Old Chris White Murray Lees 
Draft for discussion 

purposes only 

B Feb 2006 Philip Old Chris White Ian Gilliver 

Draft for discussion 

purposes only, 

updated after 

meeting the DfT 

C April 2006 
Philip Old Chris White Ian Gilliver Scope of services 

proposal

D May 2006 
Philip Old Ian Gilliver/ 

Chris White 

Peter Carden Scope of services 

proposal

E June 2006 
Philip Old Ian Gilliver/ 

Chris White 

Peter Carden Scope of services 

proposal

This document has been prepared for the titled project or named part thereof and should not be relied upon or used for any 

other project without an independent check being carried out as to its suitability and prior written authority of Mott 

MacDonald being obtained. Mott MacDonald accepts no responsibility or liability for the consequence of this document 

being used for a purpose other than the purposes for which it was commissioned. Any person using or relying on the 

document for such other purpose agrees, and will by such use or reliance be taken to confirm his agreement to indemnify 

Mott MacDonald for all loss or damage resulting therefrom. Mott MacDonald accepts no responsibility or liability for this 

document to any party other than the person by whom it was commissioned. 

To the extent that this report is based on information supplied by other parties, Mott MacDonald accepts no liability for any

loss or damage suffered by the client, whether contractual or tortious, stemming from any conclusions based on data 

supplied by parties other than Mott MacDonald and used by Mott MacDonald in preparing this report.

S-1

Page 14



i
225637/2/07/07/2006/  

P:\Manchester\Northwest\Projects (Odd)\225637 Mersey Gateway\1.0  Project Control\1.3 Proposal - Bid\Scope_budget_proposal_Rev_G.doc/ MBW 

List of Contents Page

Chapters and Appendices 

1 Introduction 1

1.1 Background 1

2 Base Year Traffic Model 4

2.1 Variable Demand Modelling 4

2.2 Modelled Road Network 4

2.3 Time Periods 5

2.4 Development of Trip Matrices 5

2.4.1 Trip Matrices 7

2.4.2 Roadside Interview Surveys 7

2.4.3 Household Travel Survey 8

2.4.4 Other Traffic Surveys 8

(i) Heavy Goods Vehicle Trips 8

(ii) Motorway Traffic 9

(iii) Liverpool Airport 9

2.4.5 Matrix Building 10

2.5 Toll Choice Modelling 10

2.5.1 Stated Preference Surveys 11

2.6 Traffic Count and Journey Time Surveys 12

2.7 Model Calibration and Validation 12

2.8 Model Convergence 13

2.8.1 Software 13

2.9 Public Transport Modelling 13

3 Future Year Model 15

3.1 Trip Matrices 15

Transport 16

3.2 Network 16

3.3 Public Transport Model 16

3.4 Toll Choice Modelling 16

3.5 Variable Demand Modelling 17

3.6 Reporting 18

Scheme 18

4 Appraisal 18

4.1 Economics 18

4.2 Accidents 19

Page 15



ii
225637/2/07/07/2006/  

P:\Manchester\Northwest\Projects (Odd)\225637 Mersey Gateway\1.0  Project Control\1.3 Proposal - Bid\Scope_budget_proposal_Rev_G.doc/ MBW 

4.3 Financial Appraisal 19

4.4 Programme 19

4.4.1 Base Year Traffic Model 20

4.4.2 Forecast Year Traffic Model 20

Page 16



Mersey Gateway: Scope of Services  Mott MacDonald 

225637/ 2/07/07/2006/  

P:\Manchester\Northwest\Projects (Odd)\225637 Mersey Gateway\1.0  Project Control\1.3 Proposal - Bid\Scope_budget_proposal_Rev_G.doc/ MBW 

1

1 Introduction 

This document is provided as the basis of the scope of work proposed for the Mersey Gateway which 

is expected to cover: 

Traffic demand forecasting;  

Economic appraisal; and 

Accident analysis. 

Fees are indicative only as the full scope of work and the availability and quality of key input data is 

not known at the time of writing. 

1.1 Background 

 The Programme Entry approval for Mersey Gateway listed a number of conditions that would need to 

be satisfied to ensure that the funding support from the Department for Transport remains in place. 

One of the conditions requires that a new traffic model be developed to produce more robust forecasts 

of the traffic impact of the proposed scheme.  

The new traffic model is a critical component of the project plan designed to deliver the following 

Mersey Gateway project objectives:-  

To relieve the congested Silver Jubilee Bridge, thereby removing the constraint on local and 

regional development and better provide for local traffic needs. (The crossing must provide a 

viable alternative route to the Silver Jubilee Bridge); 

To apply minimum toll charges to both Mersey Gateway and Silver Jubilee Bridge consistent 

with the amount required to satisfy affordability constraints and to manage road travel demand 

to ensure the delivery of transport and environment benefits by maintaining free flow traffic 

conditions on the MG and SJB; 

To maximise local development and regional economic growth opportunities; 

To improve local air quality and enhance the general urban environment; 

To improve public transport links across the river; and 

To encourage the increased use of cycling and walking. 

The proposed traffic model update is expected to be extensive suitably robust for scrutiny during the 

planning and procurement process. The key change in the modelling approach relates to the appraisal 

of variable demand in the context of congested networks where travel behaviour is also influenced by 

road user charging. The model will need to comply with policy guidance in what is a relatively new 

area of DfT appraisal.   In addition to satisfying the DfT’s challenging appraisal standards, the model 

forecasts will be used to derive the estimated toll revenue for the proposed concession arrangements 

and these forecasts will need to withstand the intensive due diligence of potential bidders and lenders.  

Page 17



Mersey Gateway: Scope of Services  Mott MacDonald 

225637/ 2/07/07/2006/  

P:\Manchester\Northwest\Projects (Odd)\225637 Mersey Gateway\1.0  Project Control\1.3 Proposal - Bid\Scope_budget_proposal_Rev_G.doc/ MBW 

2

1.2 Objectives of the New Traffic Model 

To deliver the required support for the Mersey Gateway Project the new traffic model will need to 

achieve the following:- 

1. Produce Base Year model results that meet DfT model validation criteria. 

2. To evaluate the impact of the proposed Mersey Gateway scheme on existing travel behaviour 

taking into account strategic and local reassignment, changes in trip distribution and induced 

traffic effects. 

3. To investigate the influence of toll charging options for SJB and MG.  

4. To provide the output required for economic evaluation, including the wider economic effects, 

and environmental appraisal, accommodating the full scope of investigation required to 

complete the outline business case and to produce the evidence required to support the 

planning application and public inquiry process. 

5. To enable operational assessments to be undertaken in selected future years to inform the final 

scheme reference design and level of service specifications to be used to support the planning 

process and procurement.   

6. To appraise options for re-balancing the local transport infrastructure based on the adjusted 

role of SJB in providing a local river crossing, to support the Council’s future Local Transport 

Policy, including options to improve public transport.  

In addition to the above performance objectives the following delivery objectives will apply:- 

7. The Local Model Validation Report will be forwarded to DfT for approval by the end of 

January 2007. 

8. The model forecast outputs will be available as defined in the Project Plan to achieve business 

case sign off from the DfT by the end of July 2007, thereby obtaining the authority to 

commence the planning process and/or procurement. 

9. To operate the delivery of the new traffic model as a sub project of the MG Project Plan 

including regular change management reviews that   will need to address DfT policy 

development risks and changes to regional transport programmes (including the Transport 

Innovation Fund and Northern Way investment strategies).  

It should be noted that the DfT has not been definitive in its advice and it is expected that consultation 

with the DfT will be required throughout the development of both the base year and future year traffic 

models. To this end, the objective will be to have a traffic model, structured in a manner that allows 

future change in the appraisal policy of the DfT, to be incorporated in parallel with the delivery of the 

MGTM.

The road network to be modelled is expected to be extensive due to the need to allow for sufficient 

route choice within the model. However, this should not be interpreted as providing the basis for a 

model that is validated over the entire road network to be modelled.  

Page 18



Mersey Gateway: Scope of Services  Mott MacDonald 

225637/ 2/07/07/2006/  

P:\Manchester\Northwest\Projects (Odd)\225637 Mersey Gateway\1.0  Project Control\1.3 Proposal - Bid\Scope_budget_proposal_Rev_G.doc/ MBW 

3

The focus of the model’s development will be an area close to the Mersey Gateway. There is no 

intention for the model to be validated either in Liverpool, Birkenhead, St Helens or Warrington. 

Having said this, the expectation is that the modelled traffic volumes on roads within areas such as 

Merseyside and Warrington will be substantial to enhance route choice within the model. This level of 

forecast traffic flow would be adequate for the purposes of the Mersey Gateway but does not mean 

that the traffic model will be validated in these areas. 

This focus on the area “local” to the Mersey Gateway, should allow the traffic model to be developed 

in a manner that allows the provision of level of service information, for different times of day, not 

only for the Mersey Gateway but also key approach roads within Halton and other key strategic roads 

and junctions. This information would be used to refine and further develop the scope of the Mersey 

Gateway and assist in the development of the service specification, the latter including free flow 

electronic versus manual toll collection, differential time of day road user charging etc. 

Page 19



Mersey Gateway: Scope of Services  Mott MacDonald 

225637/ 2/07/07/2006/  

P:\Manchester\Northwest\Projects (Odd)\225637 Mersey Gateway\1.0  Project Control\1.3 Proposal - Bid\Scope_budget_proposal_Rev_G.doc/ MBW 

4

2 Base Year Traffic Model 

2.1 Variable Demand Modelling 

In accordance with the DfT’s Transport Analysis Guidance Website (WebTAG or TAG), it is not 

considered acceptable to limit the assessment of the scheme to a fixed demand assessment as the 

criteria as laid out in TAG Unit 3.10.1 are not met, i.e.: 

This scheme is not expected to be modest in respect of travel costs;

There is already significant congestion in the area of the proposed scheme; and 

The scheme is expected to have an appreciable effect on competition between private and 

public transport in the corridor containing the scheme. 

Consequently, variable demand modelling is to be built in to the processes of the model from the 

outset. This includes DfT advice in relation to variable demand modelling in accordance with TAG 

Unit 3.10.3 and 3.10.4, based on the base year traffic model, including: 

Travel market segmentation; 

Local parameter (lambda) values for trip distribution; and 

Realism and sensitivity testing of adopted values. 

2.2 Modelled Road Network 

As part of the development of the updated traffic model, the road network as described within 

SATURN would be coded to provide confidence that route choice modelling is “coherent”.  

This would include factors that have the potential to affect the forecast traffic flows for the MG, such 

as assumed road traffic capacities, assumed area of simulation etc. Tasks that would be undertaken 

include a review and update to: 

Road network coverage; 

Extent of the simulation network and junction coding; 

Link and turn capacities and saturation flows; 

Link distances and coded free flow speeds / speed limits; 

Distances for centroid connectors; 

Bus services and bus networks coded; and 

Speed / flow curves, link and junction coding, especially for the SJB. 

It is also proposed that the assumed generalised cost of travel for each user class would be reviewed 

based on advice in TAG Unit 3.5.6. 

Page 20



Mersey Gateway: Scope of Services  Mott MacDonald 

225637/ 2/07/07/2006/  

P:\Manchester\Northwest\Projects (Odd)\225637 Mersey Gateway\1.0  Project Control\1.3 Proposal - Bid\Scope_budget_proposal_Rev_G.doc/ MBW 

5

In developing the modelled network, existing traffic models and other data would be reviewed (if 

made available) for their applicability to the MG. Examples of this include the Merseytram traffic 

model, the Birkenhead traffic model, south Liverpool traffic model and the Warrington traffic model. 

Other models and data exist (for example from DfT studies such as MidMan and the M60 Box) and 

permission to review and potentially use data from them would be sought. 

2.3 Time Periods 

It is proposed that the model be developed to cover the following weekday time periods (the actual 

times to be modelled would be confirmed through analysis of traffic counts on the Silver Jubilee 

Bridge):

AM peak period (0700-0900); 

PM peak period (1600-1800); 

Inter peak period (0900-1600); and 

Off peak (i.e. 1800-2400 and 0000-0700). 

The above are proposed as they allow the most important periods of the day, in terms of demand and 

toll collection, to be modelled separately as well as over the whole day. This allows for the derivation 

of 12 hour and 24 hour traffic flows. These are required as the basis of a variety of applications such as 

scheme design, economic appraisal, accident, air and noise assessments etc. It should be noted that the 

off peak period model would be built largely on the basis of the inter peak trip matrix as data for this 

time period is not to be collected. It is not expected to be validated to the same level as the other 

modelled time periods. It is included as it may be required as part of the accident analysis. This will 

depend on discussions with the DfT. 

Analysis of traffic count data would be required for the purposes of toll revenue calculations, i.e. the 

derivation of annualisation factors, and is a task not covered specifically within this document. 

Clearly, for the purposes of annualisation within TUBA and the accident analysis, a set of factors is 

also required and this would need to be consistent with those assumed for revenue forecasting. Once 

the project is underway, clarification would be required in relation to the basis of any annualisation 

factors to be used. 

2.4 Development of Trip Matrices 

Key to the development of the traffic model will be a set of robust trip matrices. Tasks proposed 

include the review and development of:

The zoning system, especially disaggregation of zones to census output area and ward level; 

Zone centroid connectors (number and location) and distances; 

The derivation of trip matrices by trip purpose and vehicle type; 

User classes in the assignment (at least commuter, non commuter and employers business 

trips);

Generalised cost parameters, by user class and vehicle type based on WebTAG advice; 

Page 21



Mersey Gateway: Scope of Services  Mott MacDonald 

225637/ 2/07/07/2006/  

P:\Manchester\Northwest\Projects (Odd)\225637 Mersey Gateway\1.0  Project Control\1.3 Proposal - Bid\Scope_budget_proposal_Rev_G.doc/ MBW 

6

Time periods modelled (peaks, inter-peak and all day); and 

The inclusion of traffic model zones for "special traffic generators", e.g. Liverpool Airport and 

other sites that are relatively local and have the potential to significantly affect forecast traffic 

volumes for the MG, including economic development zones and regeneration areas. 

After the model review it is expected that the development of the trip matrices would be by trip 

purpose and vehicle type for the time periods previously mentioned. The following is proposed as it is 

consistent with the National Trip End Model (NTEM) and variable demand modelling advice (TAG 

Unit 3.10.3). It is understood from discussions with the DfT that further advice, in draft form at the 

time of writing, in relation to travel market segmentation for toll roads, will be forthcoming and may 

affect this specification. 

The following trip matrices are proposed to meet the DfT advice that discretionary and non-

discretionary trips be maintained separately through to variable demand assignment. 

For car, taxi and light goods vehicles: 

1. Home based work (HBW); 

2. Home based other (HBO); 

3. Home based shopping (HBS); 

4. Home based education (HBE); and 

5. Non home based other (NHBO). 

For car only 

6. Home based employers business (HBEB); and 

7. Non home based employers business (NHBEB) 

For light goods vehicles 

8. Employers business (EB) 

Other goods vehicles 

9. All purposes combined 

These would be aggregated into the following assignment user classes: 

Page 22



Mersey Gateway: Scope of Services  Mott MacDonald 

225637/ 2/07/07/2006/  

P:\Manchester\Northwest\Projects (Odd)\225637 Mersey Gateway\1.0  Project Control\1.3 Proposal - Bid\Scope_budget_proposal_Rev_G.doc/ MBW 

7

User Class Description 

1 Cars and lights – Commuting 

2 Cars and lights – Employers Business

3 Cars and lights – Shopping 

4 Cars and lights – Education 

5 Cars and lights – Other 

6 Other goods vehicles 

Table 2-1: Assignment User Classes 

At the time of writing, it is understood that a discount may be given to users of each tolled facility if 

they are considered to be residents of the area administered by Halton Borough Council or if they are 

expected to be frequent users of the Mersey Gateway. If this requirement is retained, then 

consideration would need to be given to assigning the above user classes for residents, frequent users 

and non residents. 

Trip matrices are expected to be assembled from a variety of data sources, which include:  

New and existing Roadside Interview Surveys (RSIs); 

Household Travel Survey (HTS) for Merseyside; 

Census Journey to Work data; and 

Other strategic traffic models such as the MidMan traffic model. 

These are discussed in further detail in Sections 2.4.1 to 2.4.5 below. 

2.4.1 Trip Matrices 

It is generally considered desirable to include as much observed information as possible in a traffic 

model to reduce uncertainty. 

In order to include observed information as the basis of the trip matrices, it is proposed that additional 

observed information be obtained. These surveys would be undertaken in locations to complement 

existing data.  

In general modelling terms, the following are the types of trip that need to be observed: 

A. Internal to internal trips (depending on the definition of internal); 

B. Internal to external and the reverse; and 

C. External to external. 

2.4.2 Roadside Interview Surveys 

Whilst analysis of the Merseyside County Household Travel Survey (HTS) data is proposed, other 

observed data from a series of roadside interview surveys is also considered necessary to capture 

Page 23



Mersey Gateway: Scope of Services  Mott MacDonald 

225637/ 2/07/07/2006/  

P:\Manchester\Northwest\Projects (Odd)\225637 Mersey Gateway\1.0  Project Control\1.3 Proposal - Bid\Scope_budget_proposal_Rev_G.doc/ MBW 

8

traffic movements that have the potential to affect forecast traffic volumes for the MG that are not 

obtained in a HTS.  

Traditionally, personal trips that are internal to internal are captured in household travel surveys as 

these are often short-distance and not easily captured by a limited number of roadside interviews.  

A series of roadside interview surveys (RSIs) are proposed as they are the best means available to 

intercept travellers and obtain details of journeys made, including trip purposes. These are proposed at 

a series of 19 such sites, as well as the collation of data from roadside interviews collected for other 

traffic models, such as the Merseytram traffic model, Warrington traffic model, the Birkenhead traffic 

model and the south Liverpool traffic model. Other data may be available from Cheshire county 

Council and the Omega project in Warrington and this would be sought. 

2.4.3 Household Travel Survey 

Given that there is only likely to be limited observed information that can be used for the internal to 

internal trip making there is a case for developing parts of the internal component of the overall trip 

matrix from household travel survey data.  

Analysis of the Merseyside HTS is proposed but it is expected only to provide traffic movements to 

infill those parts of the trip matrix not observed at the RSI locations. 

The area over which the data is to be used is likely to be extensive and the results of the analysis 

applied over a wide area within the traffic model although providing only a relatively small proportion 

of the total number of trips in the matrix.  

It may be feasible that information on other types of trips (i.e. not wholly internal trips) could be 

obtained from census journey to work (JTW) information. This could be used for model calibration 

purposes. Other types of data such as ITIS data are not considered appropriate for deriving trip 

patterns due to the problem of determining vehicle type and trip purpose splits by time of day. The 

latter is required due to the needs of toll demand modelling and DfT requirements in relation to 

variable demand modelling. 

2.4.4 Other Traffic Surveys  

(i) Heavy Goods Vehicle Trips 

Whilst the HTS and the RSIs should be able to capture the vast majority of trip making in the study 

area, other surveys could also be required to obtain information on the trip making characteristics of 

goods vehicles making trips within the internal modelled area.   

Specific areas of development, in particular the industrial areas that lie within close proximity to the 

SJB and those that are located at Ellesmere Port, may need to be surveyed to obtain additional 

information for the traffic model matrices.  

These additional HGV surveys will only be required if it becomes apparent that the roadside interview 

surveys have not captured the vast majority of heavy goods vehicle trips that could potentially use the 

Mersey Gateway.  

These surveys are not proposed as part of the current scope but are mentioned here as there may be a 

requirement to collect such data if the roadside interview surveys do not collect sufficient adequate 

data on such trips. The budget proposal does not include these. 

Page 24



Mersey Gateway: Scope of Services  Mott MacDonald 

225637/ 2/07/07/2006/  

P:\Manchester\Northwest\Projects (Odd)\225637 Mersey Gateway\1.0  Project Control\1.3 Proposal - Bid\Scope_budget_proposal_Rev_G.doc/ MBW 

9

(ii) Motorway Traffic 

For the model to be able to replicate drivers’ route choice in a consistent and realistic manner it will be 

necessary for the forecast traffic volumes on various motorways to be as completely representative as 

possible in the traffic model. This is proposed as a high proportion of the drivers on these roads are 

travelling longer distances and it would be unlikely that either the RSIs or the HTS would have 

captured many of these. Interviewing on the approaches to Motorways is not permitted and in any case 

a considerable number of such interview sites would be required given the number of motorways in 

the study area. 

There may be a need for some limited registration plate matching to estimate the number of vehicles 

that are through-travelling on the M6 (say between J19 and J26) and perhaps on other motorway 

routes. However, we propose to obtain RSI data from other sources (such as the MidMan traffic 

model) before embarking on such a data collection exercise.  

The budget proposal does not include these registration plate surveys. 

Whilst it is desirable for traffic movements between various motorways to be captured, this is difficult 

to achieve whilst retaining the trip purpose level information, so a mechanism will be required to 

estimate this if such data is used in the traffic model. Whilst this might seem unsuitable, it should be 

remembered that the data is required mainly for the purposes of assigning sufficient trips to the 

motorways to obtain robust route choice in the model (including between motorways) and hence 

model validation. 

(iii) Liverpool Airport 

Whilst the surveys proposed should obtain information on trip making for the majority of trips, other 

surveys may be required relating to significant traffic generators. In this context, the largest traffic 

generator that would warrant special consideration is Liverpool John Lennon Airport. The airport is 

located approximately 10 kilometres from the MG. 

According to “The Future of Air Transport”, White Paper, published on 16th December 2003, 

Liverpool John Lennon Airport has seen rapid recent growth. Passenger numbers have quadrupled in 

the last five years, and in 2005 were 4.4mppa. Forecasts suggest that by 2030 throughput could be two 

or three times current levels, and the airport's master plan caters for up to 12mppa. 

As traffic models are not able to easily replicate the type and number of journeys to complex transport 

interchanges such as airports, it is proposed that information about trips to the airport, including those 

made by passengers and visitors as well as workers, be obtained to estimate the number of trips to the 

airport by mode.  

This would then be used as the basis of forecasts of future use to determine growth factors by trip 

purpose and mode. Existing information for highway trips is available from the South Liverpool traffic 

model surveys and these would be reviewed for adequacy and incorporation into the traffic model. 

Other information on mode would be sought from Liverpool Airport, particularly origin-destination 

and mode split data, which is to be incorporated if appropriate. 

It is understood that the DfT has its own airport data and independent estimates of forecast growth for 

Liverpool Airport and it may be necessary for these to be used as the basis of the forecasts for 

appraisal purposes. 

Page 25



Mersey Gateway: Scope of Services  Mott MacDonald 

225637/ 2/07/07/2006/  

P:\Manchester\Northwest\Projects (Odd)\225637 Mersey Gateway\1.0  Project Control\1.3 Proposal - Bid\Scope_budget_proposal_Rev_G.doc/ MBW 

10

2.4.5 Matrix Building 

The building of the base year trip matrices is expected to be based on a hierarchy of the data sources. 

Generally, this would be based on the most statistically robust data that has been collected. In this 

sense the matrices would be built based on: 

Roadside interview data (2006); 

Roadside interview data (historic); 

Household Travel Survey (2005/06);  

Census journey to work data; and 

MidMan and M60 Box traffic model cordon matrices (by purpose if available). 

In relation to the household travel survey, once made available, the data would be reviewed for 

robustness and used for the derivation of trip generation (and attraction) rates by trip purpose and trip 

distribution by purpose. Once estimated, these data would be combined with other analysis of the 

HTS, JTW data and land use information (census workplace data) to provide trip productions and 

attractions for the internal traffic model zones to feed into the trip distribution process. The analysis is 

proposed within Access, SPSS and ERICA or CUBE/Voyager. The output would be a series of 

synthetic highway trip matrices by time period and trip purpose to be merged with other datasets. 

2.5 Toll Choice Modelling 

The value of travel time savings (VTTS) is a critical parameter in toll road appraisals and, through its 

application, produces the dominating user benefit. 

In order that robust toll choice modelling is undertaken it is important that the underlying trip matrices 

be developed at a disaggregate level to allow segmentation of the willingness-to-pay market. This 

disaggregation is expected to be at a level similar to that used for the assessment of variable demand 

(based on DfT guidance) and is to include trip purpose and vehicle classes as per Table 2-1: 

Assignment User Classes above.  Whilst these are similar to those used for appraisal, we believe that 

these would also form a robust basis for financial appraisal. These would be reviewed as part of the 

stated preference survey specification. 

The inclusion of an increased number of user classes to represent different income groups by purpose 

would be considered. The travel market, as defined above, could be split into (say) three based on a 

distribution of average values of travel time by segment and variations either side of this based on the 

calculated standard deviation from the mean. Alternatively, a weighted average value of travel time 

could be used. It is understood that differential tolls by trip purpose and vehicle type by time of day 

may be proposed and hence the Stated Preference (SP) survey would need to be designed to capture 

this (see 3.5.1 below). 

The form of toll choice modelling proposed is a link penalty approach as opposed to the development 

of a logit toll choice model. The latter would require implementation within software that can deal 

with such toll choice modelling and is outside the capabilities of SATURN in its current form.  

There is a desire to use SATURN as the existing model runs within SATURN and it is compatible 

with the software that has been developed to date by the DfT for variable demand modelling 

(Diadem).  

Page 26



Mersey Gateway: Scope of Services  Mott MacDonald 

225637/ 2/07/07/2006/  

P:\Manchester\Northwest\Projects (Odd)\225637 Mersey Gateway\1.0  Project Control\1.3 Proposal - Bid\Scope_budget_proposal_Rev_G.doc/ MBW 

11

In order to identify and quantify willingness to pay and potentially perceived values of tolls, the 

derivation of values of travel time, based on stated preference (SP) surveys, is proposed. This is 

expected to be undertaken by expert third parties based on either Computer Aided Telephone 

Interviews (CATI) or CAPI (personal) surveys. These would be specified and reviewed by Mott 

MacDonald as appropriate. In order to specify the surveys we propose to engage the services of a 

specialist Stated Preference consultant to understand the likelihood of the SP being able to provide 

values of travel time for different components such as travel time reliability and discount effects of 

electronic toll payment methods. 

The exact nature of the toll choice modelling has to be decided but is expected to include user classes 

as defined above, i.e. a minimum of three user classes for commuters, non-commuters and employers 

business trips split by income group and by time of day.  

The precise detail of the approach to be adopted would be determined during sensitivity testing of the 

values derived from the SP and their effect on forecast traffic volumes. 

In developing values of time for potential users of the Mersey Gateway, consideration would also be 

given to deriving values for those on employers business trips, especially commercial vehicle traffic, 

that have the potential to use it. These are not generally captured in SP surveys and specific freight and 

commercial vehicle operators could be identified and interviewed to determine their value of time as it 

relates to the potential travel time benefits offered by the MG. Alternatively, values of time that have 

been developed for the DfT could be adopted. 

Consideration would also be given to the future escalation of the values of time derived from the SP 

based on forecast changes in income (GDP), but this may depend on assumptions made in relation to 

real increases in toll levels proposed over time (if any). 

Although it has been agreed to date that the proposed toll would be collected through manual 

collection at toll booths, it is suggested that in the future electronic (free flow) payment could be 

considered (given an opening year of 2014) and hence there may be a need for this to be considered 

and included in the SP surveys. 

2.5.1 Stated Preference Surveys 

In order to derive robust estimates of demand for the proposed MG it would be necessary for stated 

preference surveys to be carried out to determine the values of time (VoT) for the travel market 

segments to be modelled. This is expected to include commuters, non commuters and business 

travellers. The surveys would also be expected to cover different times of day for each segment of the 

travel market as VoT can vary by time period as well as by travel market segment. Those in scope 

would be identified from a select link in the current model on the SJB; this is expected to reveal that 

users are a mix of both local short distance and more remote long distance travellers. 

It will be important for the SP to capture the VoT not only for those travelling for different reasons 

and times of day but also for freight traffic. The latter are not easily interviewed using the same criteria 

as commuters and will need to be identified and interviews carried out to determine how a sample of 

these potential users value travel time. This is because freight companies have to consider a wide 

range of criteria when assessing the benefits of using a toll road. It is worth noting that the DfT has 

published value of time for freight vehicles and there may be a requirement for such values to be used 

at least for economic appraisal. 

Page 27



Mersey Gateway: Scope of Services  Mott MacDonald 

225637/ 2/07/07/2006/  

P:\Manchester\Northwest\Projects (Odd)\225637 Mersey Gateway\1.0  Project Control\1.3 Proposal - Bid\Scope_budget_proposal_Rev_G.doc/ MBW 

12

 It is proposed that an expert in SP be engaged in advance of the main SP survey to consider what 

component of willingness to pay can be accurately and reliably estimated, i.e. to determine the state of 

the art in the UK. This would form the basis of a tender document to be procured through the market 

Once tendered and a preferred supplier appointed, a pilot survey is expected to be carried out, after 

which some changes to the SP would be made and then the full survey would follow.  It will be 

important for quotas within each segment to be set to enable the collection of an even spread of trip 

purposes (i.e. work, shopping, education, social / recreational trips etc.).   

The results of the surveys would be a set of values of time and potentially other parameters for 

incorporation in the traffic model. 

Once perceived values of time have been estimated for the various market segments these would be 

compared with the default (resource) values suggested by the DfT for economic assessment as 

provided in TAG Unit 3.5.6. There may be a requirement for two sets of forecasts to be provided 

based on DfT values of time and those determined from the SP. The set based on DfT guidance may 

be required for scheme appraisal. The views of the DfT would need to be sought on a range of issues 

in relation to the willingness to pay surveys and analysis. 

2.6 Traffic Count and Journey Time Surveys 

In terms of the validation of the traffic model, there would be traffic data requirements in relation to: 

journey time surveys;  

traffic counts; and 

other surveys, such as that of large traffic generators in the vicinity of the scheme as discussed 

above but also potentially including other significant traffic generators such as industry at 

Ellesmere Port. 

For the assessment of the demand for a toll road, the need for model validation in terms of the 

modelled travel times becomes very important as this is essentially the basis of the decision to use the 

toll road. Hence a series of journey time survey analyses is proposed. These would be based on using 

ITIS data (from in-vehicle GIS units in the vehicle fleet). 

Survey routes would be defined to capture routes where there is potential for route choice in 

competition with the MG as well as other routes (including the SJB itself).  

Traffic counts would be required for validation screenlines and for “check” counts and could be a 

combination of both manual classified traffic (including turning) counts as well as automatic traffic 

counts. These would include at least a river screenline and others would be defined to allow the 

validation of the model to be illustrated locally. We would seek to use existing data as much as 

possible but have allowed for some new surveys to be undertaken. 

2.7 Model Calibration and Validation 

It is proposed that the traffic model be built and validated to 2006 data. The traffic model unit is 

expected to be an average weekday in June 2006 in Passenger Car Unit (PCU) equivalents. 

As part of the development of a revised traffic model, it would be necessary for the model’s 

performance to be reported. This is normally undertaken against the criteria within DMRB (Volume 

Page 28



Mersey Gateway: Scope of Services  Mott MacDonald 

225637/ 2/07/07/2006/  

P:\Manchester\Northwest\Projects (Odd)\225637 Mersey Gateway\1.0  Project Control\1.3 Proposal - Bid\Scope_budget_proposal_Rev_G.doc/ MBW 

13

12A, Section 4.2.9, 4.4.34, and Table 4.2) for traffic count validation screenlines and journey times by 

time period modelled.  

Trip distribution modelling is proposed due to the requirements of variable demand modelling and the 

estimation of local parameter values. Hence, a check is proposed of the trip distribution within the 

model, between modelled and observed travel patterns. This would be based on aggregated sector to 

sector traffic movements over a 12-hour period. The area of the model to be covered by this depends 

on the extent of observed information incorporated into the model.  

Whilst validation of each of the time period models is proposed against the DMRB criteria, it should 

be noted that not all criteria are expected to be met in full in all cases for all screenlines and counts in 

all time periods. 

2.8 Model Convergence

The levels of model convergence achieved in SATURN would also be reviewed and compared with 

the available guidance in DMRB Volume 12a. 

The convergence criteria would be based on those in DMRB Volume 12a, Section 2, Part 1, which 

states that the acceptable value of convergence is when either ‘Delta’, is less than 1%, or the 

percentage of links with a flow change <5% is greater than 90% for four consecutive iterations. Whilst 

meeting these criteria would be the objective of the modelling process it cannot be guaranteed that 

such criteria be met. 

Convergence of the demand model would also be reported. The criteria would be based on advice in 

TAG Unit 3.10.4 and the same caveats related to meeting the DfT criteria as stated above apply. 

2.8.1 Software 

It is proposed that the trip matrices be built in software such as ERICA or CUBE / Voyager and then 

re-formatted for input to SATURN for assignment. The variable demand modelling would be 

undertaken within Diadem. 

Whilst Mott MacDonald has licences to use ERICA, CUBE / Voyager, SATURN and Diadem, it may 

be necessary for additional licences to be purchased.

2.9 Public Transport Modelling 

There is a need for a public transport model to be developed as one of the main objectives of the 

Mersey Gateway is to improve public transport links across the river. 

There is some modal competition for local trip making with regular bus services between Widnes and 

Runcorn and also between these towns and Liverpool and Warrington. The latter are either by bus or 

rail. One of the potential benefits to be provided by the MG would be the opportunity to improve the 

reliability of public transport. 

We are aware of various public transport models covering the area in question, in whole or part, 

although these tend to be rail specific. There is a requirement for the public transport model to 

effectively model the likely effects of public transport proposals such as improved local bus services 

but not light rail. It is considered desirable that such a model be developed to allow the potential for 

users to switch modes (from public transport to car) to be modelled within Diadem. 

Page 29



Mersey Gateway: Scope of Services  Mott MacDonald 

225637/ 2/07/07/2006/  

P:\Manchester\Northwest\Projects (Odd)\225637 Mersey Gateway\1.0  Project Control\1.3 Proposal - Bid\Scope_budget_proposal_Rev_G.doc/ MBW 

14

To model the potential improvements in public transport due to the Mersey Gateway, a relatively 

detailed public transport model, able to model various forms of public transport, including increases in 

demand for public transport services as a result of decreased travel times, is required. 

The public transport model specification will require careful consideration and is not specified here. 

Further investigation of existing models that could be used is ongoing and once further detail about 

these models and their availability is known, more detail will be provided. This we propose in the 

form of an inception task report and as part of this we would provide an estimate of the anticipated 

cost to build such a model. The budget provided allows only for this inception report as the degree of 

uncertainty over the cost of such a public transport model is too great. 

Page 30



Mersey Gateway: Scope of Services  Mott MacDonald 

225637/ 2/07/07/2006/  

P:\Manchester\Northwest\Projects (Odd)\225637 Mersey Gateway\1.0  Project Control\1.3 Proposal - Bid\Scope_budget_proposal_Rev_G.doc/ MBW 

15

3 Future Year Model 

3.1 Trip Matrices 

For the future year trip matrices, it is proposed to forecast the purpose and vehicle type matrices for 

the opening year, design year and interim years. These are currently 2014, 2019, 2024 and 2029.  

It may be necessary to review the need for the interim years (2019 and 2024). This review would seek 

to identify whether the interim years have a significant effect on the economic appraisal of the scheme. 

Factors would be derived from the latest version of TEMPRO (Ver5, dataset version 5.1) and National 

Road Traffic Forecasts (Great Britain) 1997, (NRTF 1997), to derive the reference case matrices and 

be applied as follows: 

 User Class Description Source of Growth Factor Aggregate User Class

1 Cars, Lgvs – Commuting TEMPRO – Commuting HBW Cars

2 Cars – Employers Business TEMPRO – EB EB Cars

3 Lgvs – Employers Business NRTF EB Lgvs 

4 Cars, Lgvs – Other TEMPRO – Other Other Cars

7 OGVs NRTF OGVs 

Table 2-1: TEMPRO and NRTF Factors 

In addition to the above, trip matrices for various growth scenarios would be developed in accordance 

with DfT advice in relation to assessing the economic benefits of a scheme. This would include 

consideration of the most likely situation and optimistic and pessimistic scenarios.  

Not only would assumptions be made about the likely growth in demand for the road network but also 

in relation to the proposed changes to the road network that will provide the “do minimum” road 

network used as a basis for the economic assessment of the scheme. This is discussed below. 

It has been assumed that it may be necessary for adjustments to be made to the forecasts to allow for 

other developments such as Liverpool Airport, economic development zones and regeneration areas 

that may not have been assumed within TEMPRO.  

Some future year sensitivity testing of the land use assumptions may be required to meet DfT 

requirements. These would be expected to fall within either the optimistic or pessimistic scenario 

referred to above. 

Page 31



Mersey Gateway: Scope of Services  Mott MacDonald 

225637/ 2/07/07/2006/  

P:\Manchester\Northwest\Projects (Odd)\225637 Mersey Gateway\1.0  Project Control\1.3 Proposal - Bid\Scope_budget_proposal_Rev_G.doc/ MBW 

16

3.2 Transport Network

The road network assumed for future years would be reviewed and the most likely road network 

improvements assumed. For the do minimum situation, the network for example would be based on 

those projects with a high degree of commitment to build.  

In determining this, a review of the Highways Agency’s business plan would be undertaken, to allow 

for consistency, as well as local transport plans etc. 

We would code the proposed MG into the model with any associated network changes. We also 

propose to research speed / flow relationships and capacity for similar bridges (such as the Severn 

Bridge and the Dartford River Crossing) in practice in the UK with a view to using values derived 

from this for the proposed Mersey Gateway. 

For the optimistic and the pessimistic scenarios, i.e. the sensitivity tests, a range of other assumptions 

in relation to the transport network would be made (including the public transport network) that could 

potentially lead to either optimistic or pessimistic outcomes for the economic assessment of the 

scheme. Generally, in the pessimistic scenario, assumptions could be made in relation to higher 

investment in the future in public transport and the reverse in the optimistic.  

In addition to the above are other tasks that are toll road specific and may be included within this 

scope:

Derivation of annualisation factors (for TUBA, accident analysis, the traffic model and 

revenue forecasting); and 

Toll road strategy testing including sensitivity and scenario testing and changes to the road 

network to support the scheme. 

3.3 Public Transport Model 

In addition to making assumptions about the future levels of growth in demand for highway users, 

assumptions would be made in relation to future growth in public transport supply and demand (based 

on TEMPRO).

The extent of this work would depend on the nature of the public transport model that has been 

developed for use in assessing the effects of the MG. However, it would likely include assumptions 

about growth in demand for public transport as well as assumptions about potential changes to routes, 

frequencies and network extent (including potential upgrades). 

3.4 Toll Choice Modelling 

Future year toll choice modelling would be based on the results of the SP surveys and the results 

derived from it. The values of time determined from the SP surveys would be coded into the SATURN 

model as penalties based on their derived value and their equivalent “cost” by user class.  

At this stage the assumptions to be made in relation to discounts for local users and frequent users 

would be tested. 

Forecasts would be produced and comparisons made between the do minimum and the do something 

networks to assess the effects of the scheme, including forecast traffic volumes on the Silver Jubilee 

Bridge and the Mersey Gateway, effects on the Mersey tunnels and across screenlines etc. 

Page 32



Mersey Gateway: Scope of Services  Mott MacDonald 

225637/ 2/07/07/2006/  

P:\Manchester\Northwest\Projects (Odd)\225637 Mersey Gateway\1.0  Project Control\1.3 Proposal - Bid\Scope_budget_proposal_Rev_G.doc/ MBW 

17

3.5 Variable Demand Modelling

As an integral part of the process, whilst considering the demand for the MG, all future year traffic 

demand modelling would be undertaken within Diadem and the assignments within SATURN. 

Diadem has been produced to allow implementation of the DfT’s advice on variable demand 

modelling. 

Inputs to the process would be the reference case trip matrices (i.e. a hypothetical forecast that does 

not allow for any change in travel costs) by trip purpose and vehicle type including public transport 

skims. Other aspects of variable demand modelling would be in accordance with DfT advice as 

provided in TAG Units 3.10.1 through to 3.10.4 inclusive and in summary is expected to include: 

Modelling of responses including  

o trip generation,

o trip distribution,  

o mode choice and  

o trip re-timing; 

Travel market segmentation to include commute, non commute and business trips; 

Realism (sensitivity to changes in fuel and income) and sensitivity testing (sensitivity to 

changes in the parameter values adopted for trip generation, distribution, mode choice and re-

timing of trips); and 

Locally calibrated parameters for trip distribution (as a minimum). 

In considering the effects of variable demand modelling we propose to report changes as a result of the 

responses modelled. In particular, it will be important to monitor changes in the forecast number of 

vehicles across the Silver Jubilee Bridge and the Mersey Gateway, trip distribution and vehicle 

kilometres travelled between the do minimum and the do something situations and the level of 

convergence achieved within both SATURN and Diadem. 

Page 33



Mersey Gateway: Scope of Services  Mott MacDonald 

225637/ 2/07/07/2006/  

P:\Manchester\Northwest\Projects (Odd)\225637 Mersey Gateway\1.0  Project Control\1.3 Proposal - Bid\Scope_budget_proposal_Rev_G.doc/ MBW 

18

3.6 Sensitivity Testing and Scheme Appraisal 

3.6.1 Sensitivity Testing 

It is anticipated that a wide range of sensitivity testing be undertaken including: 

Use of average values of time or distributions of values of time; 

Actual values of time by market segment; 

Differential tolls by time of day; 

Toll collection methods; 

Toll discounts; and 

Toll levels. 

Further text on the use of the traffic model and it’s outputs is provided in Section 3.7. 

3.6.2 Scheme Appraisal 

Once validated and forecasts prepared, the traffic model would be used to provide the output required 

for:

economic and accident appraisal (included in this scope), and the wider economic effects; 

environmental appraisal, accommodating the full scope of investigation required to complete 

the outline business case; and  

evidence required to support the planning application and public inquiry process. 

Model output would also be used to enable operational assessments to be undertaken in selected future 

years to inform the final scheme reference design and level of service specifications to be used to 

support the planning process and procurement.   

The traffic models would also be used to appraise options for re-balancing the local transport 

infrastructure based on the adjusted role of SJB in providing a local river crossing, to support the 

Council’s future Local Transport Policy, including options to improve public transport 

(i) Economics 

It has been assumed that, once the forecasts of traffic for the Mersey Gateway have been developed, 

there will be a requirement for the forecasts to be appraised according to DfT advice. 

Accordingly, we propose to run the forecasts of traffic through the Transport Users Benefit Appraisal 

(TUBA) program. This is proposed for the most likely, optimistic and pessimistic scenarios for the 

forecasts years. It has been assumed that the latest version of the software available at the time will be 

used.

Page 34



Mersey Gateway: Scope of Services  Mott MacDonald 

225637/ 2/07/07/2006/  

P:\Manchester\Northwest\Projects (Odd)\225637 Mersey Gateway\1.0  Project Control\1.3 Proposal - Bid\Scope_budget_proposal_Rev_G.doc/ MBW 

19

Inputs to the process will be traffic model outputs, including matrices of trips, travel times and 

distances and travel cost charges (tolls). Other inputs would be required from others in relation to 

capital, maintenance and operational costs over the 60 year appraisal period. 

Outputs from the process will be a series of tables summarising the Transport Economic Efficiency 

(TEE), Public Accounts (PA) and the Annualised Monetary Costs and Benefits (AMCB) for each run 

of TUBA. 

TUBA is expected to be run for the most likely, optimistic and pessimistic scenarios for the main set 

of traffic forecasts. In addition to this, forecasts are to be provided for each of the sensitivity and 

realism tests in accordance with DfT advice. Also, where other model runs are undertaken, for 

example the testing of sensitivities to toll charge levels, TUBA would also be run to summarise the 

economic effects. 

For the final set of traffic forecasts and the realism and sensitivity tests (as required by the DfT), a 

summary report will be provided.  

(ii) Accidents 

As above, runs of the accident analysis would be undertaken as the forecasts of traffic become 

available. This would draw on previous work undertaken within Mott MacDonald’s own software 

(Macsem) using default accident rates. This software has been developed as a more user friendly 

equivalent of the DfT’s own COBA software.  

Future work would build on the network files that have already been created for earlier accident 

analysis of the Mersey Gateway. It may be necessary for observed values for accidents to be used in 

part or whole and this would be confirmed early in the process with the DfT. If this is the case, then 

additional time and resources would be required for this work. 

There may be a need to use Safenet for accident analysis but this has not been allowed for. 

(iii) Financial Appraisal 

It has been assumed that traffic model outputs will be required not only for the economic assessment 

and accident appraisal of the scheme but also for the financial appraisal. As such, it has been assumed 

that traffic model outputs will be provided as required for the various time periods and forecasts years 

by vehicle type. Work in relation to the derivation of annualisation factors and an assessment of ramp 

up has been assumed to be undertaken by others. However, there will be need for consistency between 

the factors used for financial appraisal, economic and accident analysis. 

3.7 Reporting 

It is proposed that reports be provided as follows: 

Traffic survey report; 

Local Model Validation Report; and 

Forecasting Report (including realism and sensitivity testing). 

These would be produced generally in accordance with DfT guidance. 

Page 35



Mersey Gateway: Scope of Services  Mott MacDonald 

225637/ 2/07/07/2006/  

P:\Manchester\Northwest\Projects (Odd)\225637 Mersey Gateway\1.0  Project Control\1.3 Proposal - Bid\Scope_budget_proposal_Rev_G.doc/ MBW 

20

4 Programme 

4.1.1 Base Year Traffic Model 

It has been estimated that if work begins on the development of the traffic model in May 2006 it could 

be developed and validated within approximately 9 months.  

The LMVR has been scheduled for completion in January 2007. 

A draft programme of the tasks required to update the existing model is provided below. It assumes 

that traffic data from the RSIs is collected in June 2006. A more detailed programme is provided as 

Appendix A.

The following provides a draft programme of activities the delivery of which is proposed at the end of 

each month noted.  

Draft Programme 

Detailed model scope and method  April 2006 

Road network coded    July 2006 

RSIs       Undertake in June 2006 

Journey time and traffic count surveys   Undertake, where necessary, in October 2006 

Report of traffic surveys    July 2006 

Household Travel Survey   September / October 2006 (if required) 

Goods vehicle / freight surveys   September / October 2006 (if required) 

Liverpool Airport and registration plate survey September / October 2006 (if required) 

Stated Preference Surveys   September / October 2006  

Assemble trip matrices and merge  October 2006 

Calibrate and validate traffic model  January 2007 

Reporting (LMVR)     January 2007 

4.1.2 Forecast Year Traffic Model 

Once the base year traffic model has been validated, it is proposed that work commence on the traffic 

model forecasts. This work would entail the development of future year road networks for the most 

likely, optimistic and pessimistic scenarios (although the naming convention for these is expected to 

be changed by the DfT in the near future). At the same time, work can commence on the development 

of the future year trip matrices based on TEMPRO and NRTF, with adjustments for other 

developments such as Liverpool Airport.  

Page 36



Mersey Gateway: Scope of Services  Mott MacDonald 

225637/ 2/07/07/2006/  

P:\Manchester\Northwest\Projects (Odd)\225637 Mersey Gateway\1.0  Project Control\1.3 Proposal - Bid\Scope_budget_proposal_Rev_G.doc/ MBW 

21

An allowance of approximately 3 months has been made for the development of the future year road 

networks and trip matrices.  

After this time, it is difficult to scope the range of activities required as it would essentially consist of a 

range of sensitivity tests and the provision of data. Some of these are required to comply with DfT 

advice but others would be required to test the veracity of the traffic forecasts and to assess the 

implications of alternative strategies. We have assumed that 2 months is set aside for this work.  

The following provides a draft programme of activities, the delivery of which is proposed at the end of 

each month noted. 

Draft Programme 

Future year road network    February 2007 

Future year trip matrices (reference case) February 2007 

Initial traffic forecasts for the Mersey Gateway April 2007 

Sensitivity testing, provision of outputs  July 2007 

Reporting     July 2007. 

Page 37



Mersey Gateway: Scope of Services  Mott MacDonald 

225637/ 2/07/07/2006/  

P:\Manchester\Northwest\Projects (Odd)\225637 Mersey Gateway\1.0  Project Control\1.3 Proposal - Bid\Scope_budget_proposal_Rev_G.doc/ MBW 

22

Appendix A: Programme 

Page 38



   
  

 Progress Report 7 July 2006: Appendix 2 

 

 

Traffic Modelling Liaison Procedures 

 

Aim:  to establish effective liaison procedures with the DfT modelling team to ensure that 

together we:- 

 

1. Agree the purpose/scope of the traffic modelling, including public transport. 

2. Understand DfT requirements for step-by-step communication of progress with analysis and 

results, level of reporting to the DfT and timing, e.g. traffic survey report, LMVR, EAR etc. 

Agree lead times required for reviews to make substantive progress and minimising the risk of 

repeating work.  

3. Discuss and agree the papers to be provided to facilitate discussions at planned liaison 

meetings and agree the process of tracking and agreeing model development. It is proposed 

that these would include the following for both the highway and public transport models:  

a. Proposed traffic survey report(s),  

b. Proposed network building,  

c. Proposed approach to trip matrix development,  

d. approach to toll choice modelling including the incorporation of results from 

estimating the value of time / willingness to pay,  

e. assumptions proposed to be made in relation to variable demand modelling, including 

elements such as local parameter values, realism testing etc.  

f. model validation (LMVR).  

g. Papers would also be provided in relation to the proposed method for forecasting 

including assumptions to be made for the proposed in relation to networks and land 

use for the most likely, optimistic and pessimistic scenarios.  

4. Use Project Quarterly Progress Reports/Meetings to record key decisions and progress.   

5. Discuss current and forthcoming DfT advice of relevance, e.g. variable demand modelling 

advice, advice on the treatment of uncertainty, road user charging, anything else. 

6. Availability of DfT-funded research papers that would be of use in developing the traffic 

model, e.g. research into travel time reliability. 

7. Approach to forecasting and reaching a consensus in relation to assumptions to be made about 

future development, for example, at Liverpool Airport and also in Economic Development 

Zones in relation to a set of forecasts to be used for scheme appraisal (and potentially 

forthcoming advice on the treatment of uncertainty in forecasting). 

8. Accident analysis, should it be assumed that local accident data is used as the basis of the 

analysis, as opposed to the use of default accident data? We propose to appraise accidents 

within our own software based on the principles and assumptions within COBA, but not using 

the COBA programme. 

9. Roadworks delay, which will be significant with the major maintenance required for Silver 

Jubilee Bridge and we are planning to base this on QUADRO analysis? 

10. To what extent could a simplified approach be adopted with regard to any of the above model 
refinements, on the understanding that they could be addressed via sensitivity tests at a later 

date? 

 

Page 39



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5Page 41
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6Page 47
By virtue of paragraph(s) 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



A
g
e
n

d
a
 Ite

m
 7

P
a
g
e
 5

1
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 5

2

T
h

is
 p

a
g
e

 is
 in

te
n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k


